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[START RECORDING] 1 

MS. MELISSA HARRIS:  Good evening, everyone.  2 

My name is Melissa Harris and I'll be acting as 3 

your facilitator for this evening's - - public 4 

hearing.  You can't hear me?  This is the joint 5 

public hearing—how's that?  Does that work 6 

better?   7 

This is the joint public hearing of the 8 

Department of Education Community Education 9 

Council District 10.  And the school leadership 10 

team to discuss the proposed closure and 11 

replacement of the Angelo Patri Middle School 12 

and opening up a new school.  Tonight's 13 

proceedings will be recorded and transcribed.  14 

Before we begin, we ask that anyone who wishes 15 

to speak during the public comment portion of 16 

the evening, please sign at the table outside of 17 

the auditorium.  Sign-up will end at 6:15.  If 18 

you have a question that you want to be 19 

addressed during the Q & A portion of the 20 

agenda, please write that question on the index 21 

cards provided at the back and submit them to a 22 

volunteer by the table.  Only people who have 23 

signed up to speak will be able to participate - 24 

- .  All panel participants were asked to be 25 
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here no later than 5:30 PM.  Now that we have 1 

started, if a panel participate arrives late, he 2 

or she will be given time to speak at the first 3 

opportune moment.  We would like to be 4 

respectful of everyone's time here this evening.  5 

There may be elected officials who arrive at 6 

different times throughout the evening.  If they 7 

wish to speak, we will do our best to 8 

accommodate them at the first opportune moment.  9 

Those here at the start at the public comment 10 

segment will be asked to speak first.  There was 11 

an agenda outside of the auditorium.  The format 12 

will include a presentation of the proposal, - - 13 

by hearing participants followed by public 14 

comment.  Public comments can be no longer than 15 

two minutes each.  This time will be strictly 16 

followed and speakers will be informed when 17 

their designated time has ended.  Again, there 18 

will be a question and answer period for this 19 

evening.  If you have a question, as I said 20 

before, you just write your question on the 21 

index card which were provided outside.  While 22 

public comments are taking place, staff members 23 

will organize the questions into categories and 24 

get them ready for the Q & A period.  Some 25 
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questions will be asked directly and others 1 

will be batched under headings in order to avoid 2 

repetitiveness.  Even though all individual 3 

questions will not be addressed in the forum 4 

this evening, the answers will be available on 5 

the website prior the Panel for Education Policy 6 

meeting.  If at the end of the hearing you still 7 

have questions, we encourage you to direct them 8 

to us by calling the following number – 212-374-9 

5159.  Again, if you have questions following 10 

this evening's hearing, we ask you to call us at 11 

212-374-5159.  You can also email us at 12 

d10proposals@schools.nyc.gov.   13 

I would like to now introduce the panel that 14 

we have assembled for this evening's joint 15 

public hearing.  Starting from my left, my far 16 

left.  Superintendent - - , CDC President, 17 

Marvin Shelton and Deputy Chancellor Kathleen 18 

[phonetic] Grimm.  We're also pleased to have 19 

Wilfredo Pagan, representative of the Bronx 20 

Borough President to the Panel Education Policy, 21 

here with us this evening.   22 

I will now turn the program over to Deputy 23 

Chancellor Grimm who will present this proposal. 24 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Thank you very 25 

mailto:d10proposals@schools.nyc.gov
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much, Melissa.  Can you hear me?  - - technical 1 

questions.   2 

MALE VOICE:   - - tested the equipment 3 

before.   4 

[crosstalk] 5 

[END RECORDING 290_242-PART1.MP3] 6 

[START RECORDING 290_242-PART2.MP3] 7 

MS. HARRIS:  We're going to get started 8 

again.   9 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I apologize - - 10 

figure out something.  I want to say good 11 

evening to everyone and to thank you all for 12 

being here tonight.  As Melissa said, this joint 13 

public hearing was convened to - - proposed 14 

closure and replacement of the Angelo Patri 15 

Middle School.  This middle school - - is 16 

located - - at 2225 Webster Avenue in the Bronx.  17 

- - .  It currently serves students in grades 18 

six through eight.  On February 28
th
 of this year 19 

the Department of Education published a proposal 20 

to close the Angelo Patri Middle School and to 21 

open a new school - - 10X572.  While closing - - 22 

and placing - - with a new school, we are 23 

seeking to - - a school environment that will 24 

prepare all of our students for success in 25 
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college, in career and in life.   1 

The new school will build on the strongest 2 

elements of the Angelo Patri Middle School and 3 

it will also corroborate new avenues in order to 4 

create a rigorous culture for teaching and 5 

learning.  Students will have access to a higher 6 

quality educational option while they continue 7 

to attend school in this - - building.  We 8 

believe this process will ensure that all 9 

students are set on a path for accomplishment.  10 

We stand behind Principal - - leadership.  The 11 

principal - - us tonight.  We stand behind her 12 

and we believe that she is the right person to 13 

be the proposed new leader of the proposed new 14 

school.  In her time here at MS 391, she has 15 

shown commitment and a strong will to improve 16 

the student achievement and learning.  We hope 17 

that you will use tonight to share with us your 18 

thoughts about the qualities you want to see in 19 

the proposed new school, including the 20 

characteristics that matter to you in a 21 

principal.  Additionally, in conjunction with 22 

this proposal, as a way to support additional 23 

school improvement, the department submitted a 24 

SIG application, that's a School Improvement 25 
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Grant application, to the New York State 1 

Department of Education to implement a 2 

turnaround model at the new school.  If this 3 

application is approved, it would make the new 4 

school eligible for up to $900,000 in 5 

supplemental federal funds.   6 

I want to acknowledge - - students and the 7 

families who feel that their son or their 8 

daughter here at 391 is being well served.  We 9 

will hear tonight about the success stories that 10 

are happening at 391.  There are success 11 

stories.  And we honor them.  But we also need 12 

to consider the many students who started with 13 

their child in the sixth grade and who have not 14 

experienced the same success.  They deserve 15 

better.   16 

Now despite a number of challenges the 17 

school has faced, some - - , but elements of the 18 

Angelo Patri Middle School are worth reserving 19 

in the new school.  The Department believes that 20 

with new programs and a push to improve teacher 21 

quality, the new school could expand the recent 22 

improvements in student outcomes.  For example, 23 

the Angelo Patri Middle School appears to be 24 

making - - in norming growth and proficiency 25 
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with English language learning.  Forty six 1 

percent of our English language learner students 2 

achieved a high level of growth on the English 3 

state tests in 2010-11.  However, MS 391 4 

performance data overall and the feedback that 5 

we have from members of the New York State Board 6 

of Regents that the pace of change in New York 7 

City persistent with - - achievement schools is 8 

not quick enough to meet student needs.   - - 9 

that MS 391 should be closed and replaced with a 10 

new school with - - programs and - - .   11 

In 2010-11, a majority of the Angelo Patri 12 

students remained above grade level in English 13 

and math.  In that year, around 11% of students 14 

were performing at grade level English and only 15 

23% of students were on grade level in math.  16 

The school's attendance rate is among the lowest 17 

for middle schools citywide.  In 2010-11, the 18 

attendance rate was 89.1%.  Putting Angelo Patri 19 

in the bottom 16% of New York City middle 20 

schools in terms of attendance.  Angelo Patri 21 

was rated developing on its most recent quality 22 

review in 2011-12.  The quality review evaluates 23 

how well schools are organized to support 24 

student learning.  Angelo Patri's 2011-12 25 
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quality review cited a number of serious 1 

concerns, including that the school needed to 2 

develop higher quality student improvement plans 3 

with measurable outcomes and improved 4 

differentiation instruction as a school wide 5 

practice to better meet the students' learning 6 

needs.   7 

Now before we hear from the other members of 8 

the panel and also public comment, I would like 9 

to briefly discuss the impact of this - - on the 10 

current Angelo Patri Middle School students and 11 

families, if it is approved.  First of all, all 12 

current Angelo Patri Middle School students will 13 

have a guaranteed seat in the new school.  This 14 

includes all current sixth and seventh grade 15 

students as well as any eighth grade students 16 

who do not graduate by the beginning of the 17 

2012-13 school year in September.  All incoming 18 

sixth graders who have applied to Angelo Patri 19 

Middle School and are - - in the middle school 20 

admissions process will automatically be 21 

enrolled in the new school.  Additionally, the 22 

Department does not anticipate that the proposed 23 

closure and replacement of the Angelo Patri 24 

Middle School would impact the qualification of 25 



 10 

the school currently - - the Theater and Arts 1 

Production Company - - .  And finally I want to 2 

clarify the process that the new school will go 3 

through to hire the best possible staff if this 4 

proposal is accepted.  There is no - - of saying 5 

that - - as a result of this process.  This 6 

proposal does not require the turnover of any 7 

set percentage of staff.  Pursuant to the city's 8 

teachers - - , if this proposal is approved, - - 9 

staff will apply to work in the new school are 10 

being viewed by a five person school based 11 

personnel committee and that committee will be 12 

made up of the principal, two designees of the 13 

chancellor and two designees of the UFT present.  14 

The proposed new leader will develop 15 

qualifications for all positions in the school 16 

and personnel committee will consider each 17 

candidate who applies.  All teachers from the 18 

current school are eligible to apply to work at 19 

the new school.  If sufficient numbers of staff 20 

from the closing school apply, at least 50% of 21 

the new school's - - positions must be selected 22 

from - - appropriate licensed, most senior, 23 

qualified applicants.  Again, I want to repeat – 24 

there is no set percentage or limit on the 25 
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number of staff from the closing school who 1 

can be hired to work at the new school.  And 2 

decisions are made by the personnel committee of 3 

the new school.  I want to thank you again for 4 

your respectful attention to my remarks in terms 5 

of the proposal and I look forward to hearing 6 

your comments and your questions.  Thank you.  7 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you Chancellor Grimm.  8 

The next presenter will be CEC President Marvin 9 

Shelton.  10 

CEC PRESIDENT MARTIN SHELTON:  Thank you 11 

very much - - this evening.  I do not like this 12 

policy of closing schools and reopening them - - 13 

if there's money available.  It's the $900,000 - 14 

- grant money that's driving all this.  We were 15 

here, CEC was here last year, we heard from 16 

parents, students, staff, alumni, community 17 

members that supported 331 that - - , that 18 

turned the image around - - come in, which was 19 

the new principal, the support organization made 20 

a presentation and they were dedicated - - CEC 21 

said, okay, you've got a year to start moving 22 

forward.  Their model was approved - - started 23 

September/October - - the evaluation contract - 24 

- didn't go through and the funding stopped.  25 
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Now, in order for this institution to receive 1 

the funding, they have to close down and reopen.   2 

- - , that's plain and simple and - - .   3 

MALE VOICE:  Thank you! 4 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We'll now hear from 5 

three members of the school's SLT, Sheena 6 

Rudolph, followed by - - , followed by Malinda 7 

Mosley.   8 

MS. SHEENA RUDOLPH:  My name is Sheena 9 

Rudolph.  I have a son that used to go to this 10 

school and the school was a great school, he did 11 

excellent in the school. 12 

[crosstalk] 13 

MS. RUDOLPH:  Okay.  Now can you hear, can 14 

you hear me now?   15 

[crosstalk] 16 

MS. RUDOLPH:  Hello.  My name is Sheena 17 

Rudolph.  I had a former son that attended this 18 

school.  The school was excellent.  It gave him 19 

opportunity to excel in whatever he believed in 20 

and he could achieve.  Throughout that, that's 21 

how I got involved in the school to be able to 22 

have my voice be heard and also be a participant 23 

in the school and also currently on the SLT team 24 

and also vice president of the PTA.  I'll 25 
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introduce myself and have everyone else speak 1 

for themselves.   2 

MS. MALINDA MOSLEY:  Good evening.  My name 3 

is Malinda Mosley, I'm the - - PTA president.  4 

Also I've been - - 18 years and had - - kids - - 5 

school.   6 

YARELIS:  [speaking Spanish]  7 

MALE VOICE:  Hear!  Hear! 8 

[crosstalk] 9 

YARELIS:  [speaking Spanish] 10 

MALE TRANSLATOR:  My name is Yarelis.  I 11 

didn't get her last name.  I'm part of the PTA.  12 

And I'm beginning to work - - if the school 13 

continues working like prior years.  I am Co-14 

President and I am interested in if the school 15 

continues.   16 

MS. RUDOLPH:  This school has been 17 

struggling for six years now.  The school has 18 

been closed and reopened three times prior to 19 

this.  We have the same population of students 20 

that—what is going to make a difference closing 21 

the school down and reopen it in July?  Who will 22 

we be holding accountable if we get the same 23 

results in - - school again?  Our - - as parents 24 

and community members, we think that the schools 25 
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need more money to have more programs in 1 

place-after school programs, we need more 2 

translation for students who comes in this 3 

country and don't know a bit of English.  We 4 

also need more money - - because you're cut your 5 

budgeting - - our kids on your backs.  It's 6 

political aspects and we also - - we have kids 7 

that are in homeless shelters that also come in 8 

this school, they're overcrowded as - - .  we 9 

have 16 year olds in the sixth grade.  That's 10 

ridiculous.  Is it the kids that are failing?  11 

Or is the DOE failing our students?  Students 12 

are slipping through the cracks because of the 13 

DOE budget cuts.  I feel that the student are 14 

failing because DOE is failing the students.  15 

DOE is failing the parents.  DOE is failing the 16 

school.  DOE is failing the community.  We need 17 

change, but we need - - productive - - .   18 

FEMALE TRANSLATOR:  I represent the - - 19 

population in this school because the lowest 20 

score is in the Spanish community.  My question 21 

is which new problems are going to be in this 22 

school - - to have the new school to improve the 23 

students' grades.  The - - are going to be there 24 

for the academic, of the behavior-how long it's 25 
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going to take the new school to teach and 1 

realize that the students will have significant 2 

learning before they close again the new school.  3 

Which interventions are going to receive the 4 

students in the new - - that are different than 5 

the problems that we already have.   6 

MS. HARRIS:  Just to interrupt.  We have a 7 

question and answer period on the agenda this 8 

evening.  So the questions - - , but once we get 9 

to the Q and A period, we'll try our best to 10 

address many of the questions that are asked 11 

here this evening.  Thank you. 12 

MS. MOSLEY:  Good evening.  My name is 13 

Malinda Mosley and I'm the - - PTA president.  14 

I've been in this area for 18 years.  I'm going 15 

to tell you a little bit about my past.  My 16 

three kids, well, I have five kids.  My 25, 23, 17 

and - - school and have no problems whatsoever.  18 

My oldest - - college and he did very well.  Now 19 

- - not here, I have a special needs, and also - 20 

- have been failing, I feel like you all been 21 

the special needs and the bilingual children 22 

here.   - - getting ones and twos.  So what you 23 

all need to do is - - children that have ones 24 

and twos, which I don't see that happening.  25 



 16 

Preparing - - is not happening.  So that's my 1 

comment and my question - what is going to 2 

happen when the new school comes in, when - - 3 

the special needs and the bilingual children.   4 

MS. HARRIS:  Okay.  We thank you.  We're now 5 

going to hear from Wilfredo Pagan, the Bronx 6 

representative to the Panel for Education 7 

Policy.   8 

MR. PAGAN:  Good evening, good evening all 9 

the parents.  Good evening, panel, deputy.   - - 10 

president's office.  I am - - I am the 11 

representative to the Panel of Education Policy.  12 

So this statement is from - - President, Rubin 13 

Diaz, Jr. to the Department of Education.  Given 14 

the - - , the Department of Education should 15 

better utilize the funding to bring more 16 

resources into the schools to produce better 17 

outcomes and increase opportunities for more 18 

students.  The turnaround process should not be 19 

used to fire all teachers from the schools.  We 20 

have no evidence that this a necessary remedy 21 

for these schools.  The DOE has not made a 22 

sufficient case that this process is needed.  23 

This process only serves to further - - the 24 

school community and no one benefits from this 25 
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process.  Instead, the Department of Education 1 

must use their power and resources to bring n 2 

the necessary change to help these schools 3 

succeed.  Thank you.   4 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We have now 5 

concluded the formal presentation.  I ask the 6 

following people to line up behind that 7 

microphone right there for public comment.  8 

Numbers one through six.  First Geneva Wilson 9 

followed by Robert Astrowsky, followed by 10 

Cristine Dominguez, then Dermott Myrie and 11 

Marcus Escobar.  The first speaker is Geneva 12 

Wilson. 13 

MS. GENEVA WILSON:  Well, good evening.  I 14 

thank the panel for coming and as I said, my 15 

name is Geneva Wilson.  I'm a parent and now I'm 16 

a business owner because of the teachers and 17 

staff that this school had.  The counseling, the 18 

tutoring, just the - - alone being there and 19 

taking the time to assist my child enabled me to 20 

be the person that I am.  So that's why it's 21 

very important for me to let you know that this 22 

staff you're not going to find anywhere else.  23 

This - - is what we need and if you do decide to 24 

close the school, I would like to know how is 25 
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the parent going to prepare their children for 1 

the resources, the next level, the next 2 

expectation of a new school if the one we had 3 

wasn't good enough?  How are we going to prepare 4 

ourselves?  Who's going to - - so these children 5 

don't come in and then get lost, frustrated and 6 

they're going to get out because the people that 7 

were there are now gone.  What are we going to 8 

do then?  Where's the hope at after you close us 9 

out?  We need the resources put in so we can 10 

have that extra help that we need, no matter 11 

what it is-whether it's - - , whoever it is.  We 12 

need resources.  We need that funding.  Because 13 

if not, who's going to help us the next time?  14 

The same thing that helped us out in the first 15 

place?  I would like for you all to consider 16 

that.  And consider that these are the children 17 

that need to have those - - , those people that 18 

know them, that put them where they're at.  19 

Because without that, the parents ain't going to 20 

have no job because we can't do anything because 21 

our kids - - .  So please consider that.  Thank 22 

you.  23 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you. 24 

MR. ROBERT ASTROWSKY:  My name is Robert 25 
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Astrowsky, I'm here representing President 1 

Michael - - and the offices of the United 2 

Federation of Teachers.  When we see a document 3 

like this, it looks like gee, you know, it's a 4 

slam dunk, what are we talking about?  You know, 5 

but before January, this school was not on the 6 

list to be closed.  It wasn't there.  It only 7 

got on the list after the Department of 8 

Education and the United Federation of Teachers 9 

could not agree on an evaluation plan.  That's 10 

what - - .  It's not - - .  It doesn't meet the 11 

criteria the Department of Education itself set 12 

up!  They set up criteria and they ignore the 13 

criteria.  So what's going on here?  It's very 14 

simple.  And, you know, I'm going to say we 15 

always talked about the PDP as being a 16 

rubberstamp.  Well, maybe not.  Look what 17 

happened yesterday-seven of these schools, seven 18 

of the 33 schools were taken off the list.   - - 19 

another school just like 391.  Thank you.   20 

MS. CRISTINE DOMINGUEZ:  Good evening.  My 21 

name is Cristine Dominguez.  I've been a teacher 22 

at this school for ten years and I speak for the 23 

bilingual and ESL students.  We are usually the 24 

forgotten group, the one that is invisible.  We 25 
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only are seen when it's time for election or 1 

when the - - for bilingual kids.  Otherwise we 2 

are never - - anything.  We provide - - in the 3 

area.  We are way past the other student - - 4 

regular class.  Our bilingual classes have 38 to 5 

41 students per class.  With all kinds of 6 

difficulties.  We have a student that recently 7 

got - - the United States, they hardly know 8 

their own language, but we are helping them in 9 

both language and then they want us to succeed 10 

and compare them with student that were born 11 

here the United States and - - all their lives.  12 

We are a team of teacher who - - prepare to 13 

teach and provide a service that the students of 14 

this community need.  We know them and we love 15 

them.  We have been teaching members of the same 16 

family for years and they keep coming back 17 

because they know - - their children.  We teach 18 

and educate them with their parents.  We are a 19 

team.  We are part of this community and it 20 

would be a shame to close this school just for - 21 

- personal reason and to show who is the most 22 

powerful.  The community needs us and we need 23 

the community.  We need to work together and - - 24 

work on what we have built, not - - .  Thank 25 
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you. 1 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.   2 

MR. DERMOTT MYRIE:   - - members, committee 3 

members, my name is Dermott Myrie.  I'm here to 4 

announce and—regret to announce that impending - 5 

- 33 school districts are closing.  Thirty 6 

three.  Right?  School districts.  I'm not 7 

talking about schools.  Thirty two schools are 8 

closing, but 33 school districts are in need of 9 

improvement.  All right?  - - the correction.  10 

Mayor Bloomberg is not - - believe in public - -11 

 .  We need a person who understands leadership, 12 

who understands education as a human right and - 13 

- denying human rights for this community in the 14 

Bronx.  New York City public education is even 15 

worse under Mayor Bloomberg.  I - - here tonight 16 

and he will understand why Mayor Bloomberg has 17 

failed every student in the New York City public 18 

schools.  All right?  Let me repeat-there are 19 

many districts that are in need of - - 20 

improvement.  This is a problem.  This is a 21 

disgrace.  This is an embarrassment, it demands 22 

attention.  The attention of the city and state 23 

lawmakers, - - state education commission.  This 24 

is a precedent that will affect our communities 25 
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across the city for years to come.  Almost 66 1 

in Manhattan.  A couple districts in the Bronx - 2 

- District 10 is in need of improvement.  3 

Districts in Brooklyn.  Districts in Staten 4 

Island.   - - schools.  Why are they so 5 

concerned and concentrating in closing 33 6 

schools when - - districts need support.  We, 7 

the people, demand answers to these failures of 8 

these districts.  We demand answers for the - - 9 

this school's moving in the right direction 10 

based on reports from the bureaucrats who 11 

visited the school.  The community needs social 12 

justice and we will get it when we are in 13 

control of schools - - issue a moratorium to 14 

stop these closings - - for April 26
th
 to take a 15 

- - vote and have an honest discussion - - 16 

community will keep our hope alive, because this 17 

is a political ploy. 18 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  19 

MR. MARCUS ESCOBAR:  Good evening everyone.  20 

My name is Marcus Escobar.  I'm the District 10 21 

UFT representative.  Before - - I just need some 22 

clarification.  For the 18B committee there is a 23 

parent representative on that committee, yes?  24 

[crosstalk] 25 
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MR. ESCOBAR:  Chancellor Grimm?  Deputy 1 

Chancellor Grimm? 2 

MS. HARRIS:  Yes, we will address all 3 

questions during the Q and A period. 4 

MR. ESCOBAR:  Okay.  So then I will hold off 5 

on that. 6 

MS. HARRIS:  Well, we'll write it down. 7 

MR. ESCOBAR:  That’s fine, thank you. 8 

MS. HARRIS:  Uh huh. 9 

MR. ESCOBAR:  All right.  Tonight we are 10 

standing up and speaking out against Mr. 11 

Bloomberg and his politically motivated plan to 12 

hold teachers, parents, students and 13 

administrators of the Angelo Patri Middle School 14 

hostage.  Our children deserve better than the 15 

public showboating they're seeing here tonight.  16 

The educational impact statement I hold here by 17 

the Department of Education clearly states that 18 

the proposed new school will provide many of the 19 

same curricular activities, use the same support 20 

organizations that are already in place at MS 21 

391.  Over and over again the educational impact 22 

statement raises the same - - .  If the proposal 23 

for the new school is approved, I say - - we are 24 

not ignorant.  We know that the decision to 25 
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close down 391 has already been made.  And the 1 

only reason that we are here today is because 2 

it's required by state law.  And when we are 3 

done here today, the members of this panel will 4 

return to their puppet master Chancellor Walcott 5 

[phonetic] and Mayor Bloomberg, but before they 6 

do, we must make sure that they hear what our 7 

school committee has to say.   8 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  Following Miss 9 

Farley, could numbers 7 through 11 line up 10 

behind Miss Farley?   11 

MS. MARY FARLEY:  Good evening.  I'm Mary 12 

Farley.  I'm a math teacher here at MS 391 and 13 

I'm speaking for a group of teachers.  This 14 

institution has strived since its inception as 15 

IS 137, to fulfill its mission.  In the past 37 16 

years we have reopened as MS 321, MS 391 and we 17 

are on our way to reopening as MS 572.  In June 18 

we were given a new life as a restart school and 19 

awarded a stay.  We applied it to a new reading 20 

program, the hundred book challenge, and we 21 

sought help from top educational consultants.  22 

Despite praise received from city and the state 23 

education representatives, MS 391 has been 24 

declared a PLA school and slated for shutdown.  25 
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Let's look at some of the facts.  A large 1 

percentage of our students are recent immigrants 2 

with limited or no knowledge of English.  Our 3 

bilingual classes are overcrowded and students 4 

are denied the attention they need and deserve.  5 

Yet they are given the same tests as their 6 

American born peers and their results are 7 

evaluated with the same norms.  Well, this is a 8 

distinct disadvantage for our school's test 9 

scores.  We are proud to be a gateway for these 10 

new immigrants and expect support for this 11 

effort, not penalties.  As a - - district, our 12 

students rely on the school for food, a safe 13 

haven after school as well as their education.  14 

In an area where parents experience high 15 

unemployment, our children need help, not a 16 

closed school.  Members of the panel, you have a 17 

chance to break this spiral of low achievement 18 

and revolving teachers and administrations.  Our 19 

teachers are as dedicated and qualified as any 20 

others.  Our teacher turnover rate is low and 21 

instruction improves with experience.  We have 22 

strong ties to the community.  Education is 23 

about our children's future.  Rich and poor 24 

children, white children and children of color.  25 
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Please support and save our school.   1 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you, Miss Farley.   2 

MR. ILUMINEDO HERNANDEZ:  My name is Mr. 3 

Hernandez.  I'd like to welcome all the parents, 4 

the teachers, the staff that found it important 5 

today to come to this meeting and get involved.  6 

I'm a former teacher - - .  I taught here 30 7 

years and time and time again I saw teachers 8 

helping students - - rates, 10 percentile, 20 9 

percentile, raise to 40-50, yet, because they 10 

did not meet that magic standard of the - - 50%, 11 

the school was made into a - - years ago.  And I 12 

see teachers here who I knew and - - I see that 13 

they're very dedicated.  Now, we should have a 14 

strategy.  And one of the strategies that I 15 

think is the feeder schools who send us to 391 - 16 

- percentiles.  Why don't you send the students 17 

who are average or above average to 391, so that 18 

they can bring up the score?  Another is to take 19 

- - program for parents, especially parents who 20 

don't know English to help them read and write 21 

so that they can help their children.  Not only 22 

in reading and writing, but in math.  If you 23 

help parents understand and learn, they - - help 24 

their children do their homework at home and 25 
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maybe the school would be just as it was years 1 

ago when I first started, like - - percent, 75% 2 

of the students graduated and didn't drop out, 3 

as I see people dropping out now.  Okay?  Thank 4 

you very much.   5 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.   6 

MR. HECTOR PEGUERO:  Hi.  My name is Hector 7 

Peguero.  I used to attend this school four 8 

years ago and I think it was a pretty good 9 

school because it only took me a year and a half 10 

to learn English - - honors class.  And from 11 

there, the teachers offered me AP classes like 12 

earth science, even law classes and from them I 13 

learned so much and they helped me throughout 14 

the years.  And I think all the teachers here 15 

are all dedicated to help the students out if 16 

you cut the budgets and then what do you expect 17 

them to do if they don't get paid enough for all 18 

the effort and hard work that they do.  So thank 19 

you - - .   20 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.   21 

MR. JUAN PEGUERO:  Hello.  My name is Juan 22 

Peguero and for me, I think the state test is 23 

right, like in two weeks and all the teachers 24 

have been helping me out.  And also I can - - IP 25 
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and I really don’t think anyone should be 1 

fired.  Everyone should be the same because 2 

they're really helpful and they help us a lot.   3 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you. 4 

MR. STEPHEN BENNETT:  Good evening ladies 5 

and gentlemen, my name is Stephen Bennett 6 

[phonetic], I represent the Council of School 7 

Supervisors and Administrators, which is a union 8 

that represents principals and assistant 9 

principals throughout the city.  I am the Bronx 10 

- - director for CSA and I am here tonight to 11 

read a prepared statement.  The New York City 12 

Department of Education's latest attempt to 13 

close 26 schools, which were already in the 14 

process of a three year reform program is a 15 

political maneuver that is not rooted in sound 16 

educational practice.  You can applaud, that's 17 

cool.  Rather it began as a ploy designed to 18 

avoid negotiations with CSA and UFT over new 19 

principal and teacher evaluation systems.  The 20 

motivation behind that ploy is to follow a 21 

turnaround model.  A model that does not require 22 

principal and teacher evaluations and allows the 23 

city to close and immediately reopen schools 24 

under new names, new numbers, what else would be 25 
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new about them?  Fifty percent of the teachers 1 

would be new, while 50% of the former teachers 2 

would be put into excess.  There's nothing 3 

educationally sound about this intervention 4 

plan.  It's being introduced for cynical 5 

reasons, not to help children.  It will not 6 

contribute to the development of sound principal 7 

and teacher evaluation systems.  Furthermore, in 8 

removing half of the staff from these schools 9 

and recruiting replacements from other schools, 10 

the New York City Department of Education will 11 

destabilize schools throughout the system, one 12 

after the other, like dominos.   - - costs are 13 

the most important ones, there are fiscal costs 14 

too.  Removing 1,800 teachers, tossing them into 15 

the ATR where they will work as substitutes at 16 

full salary will cost this city approximately 17 

$180 million annually.  Thank you. 18 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.   - - 12 through 15.  19 

Twelve through fifteen.  Eric Collin is first.  20 

Followed by Lorraine Herman.   21 

MR. ERIC COLLIN:  I see a few empty seats 22 

here.  A low turnout.  Not due to a lack of 23 

support in the school, but to a lack of faith in 24 

the system.  A system that gives a new principal 25 
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a questionable rating after only a few months 1 

on the job.  A system that gives us an 2 

opportunity as a transformation school and then 3 

took that opportunity away by closing the school 4 

as a reaction to a union disagreement.  A system 5 

that asks as teachers to differentiate our 6 

teaching, yet treats all the PLA schools the 7 

same-by closing them.   - - , okay, 33, now it's 8 

27, I feel so much better.  Our staff is 9 

passionate.  Our staff has worked harder this 10 

year under Principal - - than any year since 11 

I've been here.  Our staff is working under a 12 

microscope in a way most schools couldn't 13 

imagine.  Our staff, even after hearing it'd 14 

been saved, still had 25 volunteers during our 15 

Saturday come to kids event where training and 16 

computers were given to members of our 17 

community.  Our staff drives itself harder than 18 

ever to prepare our students for the state exams 19 

despite being constantly reminded that this is 20 

considered a failing school.  The possible 21 

outcome of this change can be debated, but the 22 

process by which we have come to this point has 23 

been horrible.  We have felt like a football 24 

being kicked back and forth in a game that we 25 
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have no control over.  Our pressures this year 1 

on all levels have been incredible and I applaud 2 

the staff for its efforts and its 3 

professionalism under fire.  We believe in the 4 

school and its combined community, but our 5 

belief in the wisdom of the system has been 6 

severely compromised.  And we are very 7 

disappointed.   8 

MS. LORRAINE HERMAN:  My name is Lorraine 9 

Herman.  I'm a 31 year teacher here and chapter 10 

leader MS 391.  I thank everyone for coming.  My 11 

main support here is to keep the school the way 12 

it is now.  I support the teachers in our school 13 

100%.  They're very hardworking, dedicated 14 

teachers.  I first came to this school in 1981.  15 

This is my 31
st
 year here.  I went through four 16 

changes, it was redesigned, phased in, phased 17 

out, teachers were let go and I don't feel that 18 

- - responsible for being low performing.  There 19 

are many other factors.  Thirty percent of our 20 

children are ELS, there's a lot of economically 21 

disadvantaged children that come from homeless 22 

situations.  We are more than teachers to them.  23 

We've had—since I'm here, we had 12 principals.  24 

Not one has been here more than four years.  How 25 
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do you change principals so quickly and not 1 

give them a chance to put their agendas into 2 

place?  I was reading an article in, I believe, 3 

the Daily News this week where they're comparing 4 

Mr. Bernardo to another principal and one of the 5 

pluses was that Mr. Bernardo has been at 86, 6 

before he retired, for 20 years.  No principal 7 

has stayed long enough in this school.  That's 8 

important.  Miss - - is trying to put her views 9 

and changes to be implemented in place and I do 10 

feel this staff is an excellent staff.  Our 11 

children will succeed will succeed.  And I feel 12 

we've changed their lives for the better.  Thank 13 

you. 14 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you. 15 

MR. JUSTIN COMACHO:  My name is Justin 16 

Comacho.  I graduated this school in 2009.  I 17 

just want to start by saying I never come to 18 

school one day, for the three years I went here, 19 

and felt unsafe, unwanted or unhelped.  You see 20 

these teachers lined up here and sitting down, 21 

they don't have to be here right now, they're 22 

here because they care.  And - - is one thing 23 

and a whole bunch of - - going to try to make 24 

sure - - other school, there's one thing that 25 



 33 

you can't.  These group of teachers, they 1 

care.  And you're always talking about how 2 

teachers are not doing their job they're not 3 

getting high enough grades, maybe you guys 4 

should stop counting the quality of the teachers 5 

and the quantity of the teachers because when 6 

you put 40 students in one room with one 7 

teacher, I don't think you can teach like that.  8 

Because I saw that when I came here and it's not 9 

the teacher's fault.  And you want to know 10 

something-Newton's Law of insanity was trying 11 

multiple things and getting the same result.  So 12 

closing the school down and opening it again 13 

under a different name is insane.  And I don't 14 

know what you guys are teaching your all 15 

children, but by closing this school down, it's 16 

teaching us that every time something don't 17 

work, you quit.  And I - - not Miss - - , not 18 

Miss Farley, not Mr. - - , they all taught me 19 

never to be a quitter, so I don't know about you 20 

guys.   21 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  I have Rufina 22 

Martinez?  Rufina Martinez?  After Miss Martinez 23 

speaks, Miss - - , sorry, she's going to give 24 

remarks again on behalf of the SLT. 25 
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MALE TRANSLATOR:  Good evening, my name is 1 

Rufina Martinez.  I'm practically representing 2 

all the mothers, their children that are here in 3 

this school.  My idea is the following – I 4 

believe that the - - doesn't necessarily 5 

represent the solution to the school.  We need 6 

more quantity in the education of our children.  7 

I believe a change in the name, a change in the 8 

direction of the teachers is not the solution.   9 

Not a necessary solution.  I believe we have 10 

very good teachers and a very good principal.  11 

Just we need a little more safety due to the 12 

location of our school.  And - - we would also 13 

like that a program is implemented that involves 14 

parents, teachers and students.  That would be 15 

an excellent complement so that our children 16 

receive a better education.  That is - - .   17 

MALE TRANSLATOR:  Good evenings - - .  I'd 18 

love to say that our classrooms are 19 

overpopulated.  The state evaluates the grade, 20 

but the problem is not the score.  The problem 21 

is in the cuts since teachers need help in the 22 

classrooms.  Classrooms have 36-38-39 and even 23 

more students.  Just one teacher.  In different 24 

languages.  A variety of languages.  Based on 25 
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that information, the overcrowding in the 1 

classrooms, what's going to happen with the 2 

state - - .  You make cuts and the school has to 3 

close programs.  The department makes excessive 4 

cuts in the budget.  That is taking last year 5 

and this year into consideration.  The amount of 6 

cuts has increased.  What's going to happen with 7 

our children's education?  With these cuts, 8 

programs and staff that our children are going 9 

to be removed.  That is why the system doesn't 10 

work.  Teachers and the school need more money.  11 

The state has evaluated this school for some 12 

years now.  They've made changes to the physical 13 

structure and the staff, but at the same time 14 

they make cuts, teachers in the school continue 15 

working with the same curriculum.  Who evaluates 16 

this curriculum, because it is you that give it, 17 

that hand it out.  Because you evaluate the 18 

teachers.  The teachers work with what you 19 

provide.  So where is the - - .  - - or the ones 20 

that work for you.  That is the question before 21 

you.   22 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We have now 23 

concluded the public comment portion of this 24 

evening's agenda.  We will begin the Q and A 25 
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period.  Remember, there will be some 1 

individual questions and others that have been 2 

bucketed into categories where you will have 3 

representative questions asked.  Any question 4 

not answered here tonight will be answered on 5 

the website.  If you have additional questions 6 

at the conclusion of tonight's proceedings, we 7 

ask that you direct them to us via this 8 

telephone number.  I'll say it again – 212-374-9 

5159. The telephone number again – 212-374-5159.  10 

Or you can direct questions to us via the 11 

following email address – 12 

d10proposals@schools.nyc.gov.  I'll read the 13 

first question.  What programs will be 14 

implemented so as to improve students' grades?  15 

MS. JEANIE BECK:  Hi.  My name is Jeanie 16 

Beck.  I am from the Division of Portfolio 17 

Planning.  To answer that question, I do have a 18 

few key points about the new school plan that is 19 

also included in the educational impact 20 

statement that is on the table and that is 21 

posted online.  Specifically in section three of 22 

that EIS.  But to very briefly cover a few 23 

bullets.  If this proposal is approved and based 24 

on the needs assessment as well as the resources 25 

mailto:d10proposals@schools.nyc.gov
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available, and - - from the principal and her 1 

leadership team, one of the first major elements 2 

of the new school's - - model will be to 3 

implement project based learning.  New school 4 

also will plan to increase the number of 5 

advanced courses that it will offer, which may 6 

include the living environment - - course and a 7 

social studies - - course.  If approved, new 8 

school may also plan to implement a new grading 9 

policy for students that distinguishes academic 10 

skills from work attitudes and habits.  Also, 11 

new school will plan to incorporate technology 12 

literacy across all grades and across all 13 

content whenever possible.  And to help make 14 

technology a fixture in the daily life of 15 

teachers and students.  And lastly, if approved, 16 

new school will also plan to implement a Summer 17 

Bridge program for all incoming sixth grade 18 

students to support their - - to middle school 19 

to further support students.   20 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you Jeanie.  There are 21 

other questions that we're going to get through 22 

this evening.  A clarifying question-a response 23 

to one of the comments about the Spanish 24 

language and English language learners, the 25 
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supports that we're offering to Spanish 1 

language and English language learners in the MS 2 

391 community.   3 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Sure.  Thank you.  4 

To try and clarify, I did mention earlier that 5 

MS 391 appears to be making good strides in 6 

learning, growth and proficiency with its 7 

English language learners.  Applause is good.  8 

The example I wanted to share with you is that 9 

46% of the English language learners achieved 10 

high levels of - - of the English state test in 11 

the 2010-11 year.  And that puts the school, for 12 

that indicator, in the top 31% city wide for ELL 13 

students.  So that's terrific.  And so what 14 

we're going to do is try to preserve MS 391's 15 

efforts and continue to serve these students 16 

while also implementing new supports to assist 17 

other student populations.  Also as noted in the 18 

- - that Jeanie referenced, the department knows 19 

that MS 391 offers a transitional bilanguage 20 

program in Spanish.  The new school will 21 

continue to offer this program and will build 22 

upon its strengths. 23 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  - - questions.  24 

Another question came in regarding how will the 25 
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DOE break the cycle of having failing schools.   1 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Well, the current 2 

proposal to immediately close and replace MS 391 3 

is clearly different from other proposals to 4 

gradually phase out struggling schools.  Which 5 

is a strategy that has proven very effective in 6 

the many instances we've used it.  Now this 7 

proposal is not a gradual phase out of the 8 

school.  Rather MS 391 would close at the end of 9 

the current year in June and it will be 10 

immediately replaced  with the new school.  All 11 

of the current students are guaranteed a seat at 12 

that new school.  In addition, the department, 13 

as I mentioned earlier - - the proposal, has 14 

submitted an application to the State Education 15 

Department to implement what is called the 16 

turnaround model to hopefully restore the school 17 

improvement grant funds that will support the 18 

new school.  And if this application is 19 

approved, it's not approved yet, but were it to 20 

be approved, the new school would eligible for 21 

up to $900,000 in supplemental federal funding.  22 

Now, to turn - - provides a mechanism to quickly 23 

improve the teacher quality of the school.  And 24 

it calls for the implementation along with that 25 
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of programmatic supports, reforms and 1 

strategies to substantially improve student 2 

outcomes and to increase our graduation rates.  3 

I would also like to reiterate that in this 4 

case, it is proposed that the current principal 5 

would be the proposed new leader of the proposed 6 

new school.   7 

MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We received a 8 

question regarding whether this proposal is a 9 

result of teachers or students.   10 

DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Well, let's make 11 

it very clear-this proposal is not, is 12 

absolutely not anything that rests on the 13 

students.  We're proposing to close and replace 14 

the school because we believe that in doing so 15 

we're going to provide a better educational 16 

option for our current students and for our 17 

future students.  What we're trying to do—we are 18 

seeking to quickly create a high quality - - 19 

environment that children need to prepare for 20 

success in college - - , in life in the 21
st
 21 

Century.  And by preserving the elements of MS 22 

391 that have led to improvement while giving 23 

the school the wherewithal to build upon those 24 

good things and accelerate the pace of change.   25 
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MS. HARRIS:  Thank you.  We have now 1 

completed the Q and A period for this evening's 2 

agenda.  We thank you for your comments this 3 

evening and—all the information shared here will 4 

be shared with the Panel on Education Policy 5 

which will have its hearing on April 26, 2012, 6 

at the Prospect Heights Campus in Brooklyn to 7 

vote on this proposal.  Please use the telephone 8 

number which was given earlier or the email 9 

address if you have any questions or concerns.  10 

Thank you all for coming.  This - - hearing is 11 

officially adjourned.  12 

[END RECORDING] 13 
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